
A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX  

OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20, 2019 

5 P.M. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

ROLL CALL 

Board Members 

ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Welcome New Committee Members and Introductions – (Wilson) 

2. Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on 

this agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

3. Approval of Minutes of the General Transactions and Use Tax Oversight Committee Meeting 

held on June 7, 2018. 

4. Review Committee Guidelines and Duties – (Dingman) 

5. Receive Measure S Update and Progress Report – (Corey) 

6. Review FY 2017-18 Measure S Audit Report – (Luna) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

7. Next Discussion of Future Agenda Items, Meeting Dates and Similar Administrative Matters 

– (Dingman) 

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing Staff Reports and exhibits related to each item is available for public 

review at least 72 hours prior to a Committee Meeting or, in the event that it is delivered to the Committee members 

less than 72 hours prior to a Committee Meeting, as soon as it is so delivered. The packet is available for review in 

the Suisun City Manager’s Office during normal business hours. 

 



MINUTES 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX  

OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 

THURSDAY, JUNE 7, 2018 

6 P.M. 

 
SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

ROLL CALL 

Board Members Present: Ruth Forney, Tony Oddo, Garry Rowe, Wanda Williams, Chair 

Board Member Absent:   Michael Moore 

 

City Staff Present: 

Tom Myers, Interim Fire Chief; Tim McNamara, Development Services Director; Scott Corey, 

Senior Management Analyst; Kris Lofthus, Recreation and Community Services Director; John 

Kearns, Senior Planner; Mike Kashiwagi, Interim Public Works Director; Joe Dingman, 

Administrative Services Director; and Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager; 

 

City Manager Bragdon opened the meeting with the introduction of City staff in attendance.  She 

explained staff is working on the FY2018-19 Budget which is scheduled for the June 19, 2018 

City Council agenda for adoption. 

ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Measure S Data Review – (Chair Williams) 

This item was moved to be discussed after General Business Items. 

PUBLIC COMMENT    None 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda 

per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

2. Approval of Minutes of the 2018 General Transactions and Use Tax Oversight Committee 

Meeting held on February 28, 2018. 

Board Members Rowe moved and Forney seconded a motion to approve General Business 

Item 2.  Motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

3. Report on Status of 2018 Measure S Collections – (Corey) 

Senior Management Analyst Corey gave a report of Measure S revenues explaining the 

projected and actual revenues received, sales tax and expenditures.  Car sales and internet sales 

are having a higher than expected impact on revenues. 

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #3



June 7, 2018 Oversight Committee Agenda Page 2 

 

4. Measure S Budget Chart and Updates (Fiscal Year 2018-2020) 

Department Heads presented background information on their departments function, including 

budget, staffing, and projects.  Projects discussed funded by Measure S included, CAD System 

Lease for seven years, Fire Department training for structure fires, dredging, roads, property 

tax increase, and ROPS. 

Discussion was held and Department Head responded to questions from the Board. 

ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Measure S Data Review – (Chair Williams) 

Board Members discussed how they would report to the City Council and agreed they would 

make a presentation at the next council meeting. 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

5. Committee Meeting Stipend 

Management Analyst Corey gave an update on the meeting stipend. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk 

 

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #3



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #4



CHAVAN & ASSOCIATES, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1475 SARATOGA AVE., SUITE 180
SAN JOSE, CA 95129

CITY OF SUISUN CITY
CALIFORNIA            

MEASURE S
GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND

USE TAX AUDIT
(ORDINANCE NO. 742) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

*        *        *

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



CITY OF SUISUN CITY
CALIFORNIA

MEASURE S GENERAL TRANSACTION AND USE TAX

ORDINANCE NO. 742

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE NO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT............................................................................................. 1 - 2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ........................................................................ 3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .................................................................................... 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS .................................................................................... 5 - 6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE

TO MEASURE S GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY

ORDINANCE NO. 742 ............................................................................................................ 7 - 8

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 1 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
City Council of the City of Suisun City

City of Suisun City, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures for Measure S of 
the City of Suisun City (the “City”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statement, which comprises the City’s statement of revenues and 
expenditures for Measure S.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

City management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of its financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on the financial statement based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statement. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 2 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the revenues and expenditures for Measure S of the City of 
Suisun City, as of June 30, 2018, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Information 

The accompanying statement was prepared to present the revenues and expenditures pursuant to 
Measure S and Ordinance No. 742 as described in the Notes and is not intended to be a 
complete presentation of the City’s revenues and expenditures.  It does not purport to, and does 
not, fairly present the financial statements of the City as of June 30, 2018, and its changes in 
financial position for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 28, 2018 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 28, 2018
San Jose, California

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



CITY OF SUISUN CITY
CALIFORNIA

MEASURE S GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX

ORDINANCE NO. 742

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 3 -

Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Sales & Use Tax 2,200,000$    2,200,000$    2,501,763$    301,763$       

Total Revenues 2,200,000      2,200,000      2,501,763      301,763         

EXPENDITURES

City Staff:

Police Officer 92,800          92,800          68,508          24,292          

Police Officer 94,400          94,400          92,943          1,457            

Dispatcher 73,700          73,700          52,065          21,635          

Fire Administrative Captain 92,700          92,700          53,809          38,891          

SCFD Succession Planning Program 20,000          20,000          -               20,000          

Economic Development Specialist 46,400          46,400          32,763          13,637          

Maintenance Worker 70,200          70,200          70,200          -               

Recreation Supervisor 36,400          36,400          22,658          13,742          

Total City Staff 526,600         526,600         392,946         133,654         

Police Patrol Vehicle -               25,500          25,500          -               

Capital projects:

Marina Dredging 213,000         213,000         213,000         -               

Fire Engine Acquisition 250,000         250,000         250,000         -               

Street Repair Program 328,500         328,500         328,500         -               

Public Safety Communication System 229,000         229,000         229,000         -               

Storm Drain Repairs 228,000         228,000         431,262         (203,262)       

Business Mgmt.-Phase 1 224,000         224,000         224,000         -               

Video Surveillance Program 40,000          40,000          40,000          -               

Total Capital Projects 1,512,500      1,512,500      1,715,762      (203,262)       

Total Expenditures 2,039,100      2,064,600      2,134,208      (69,608)         

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues over Expenditures 160,900         135,400         367,555         232,155         

Measure S Balance Beginning 303,728         303,728         303,728         -               

Measure S Balance Ending 464,628$       439,128$       671,283$       232,155$       

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



CITY OF SUISUN CITY
CALIFORNIA

MEASURE S GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX

ORDINANCE NO. 742

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

- 4 -

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Reporting Entity

The statement represents the revenues and expenditures for the Measure S General Transactions and use 
tax under Ordinance No. 742 of City of Suisun City (the “City”) for the year ended June 30, 2018.  The 
accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures presents only the activities from the expenditure of 
Measure S taxes is not intended to present the financial position and result of operation of the City in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Description of Measure S

Measure S is a 1% local tax applied to gross receipts of any retailer within the city and collected similarly 
to sales and use tax.  It was passed by a majority of the voters in November of 2016 through City 
Ordinance No. 742.

Statement of Grant Revenues and Expenditures

The statement of revenues and expenditures presents the eligible costs charged to Measure S by the City
and the revenues received from general transactions and use tax from the sale of tangible personal 
property at retail within the City.  

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported 
in the statement.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the 
measurement focus applied.  The City used the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when collection of the amounts can be reasonably estimated to be received in the near future, 
typically 60 days after year end.  Expenditures are generally recognized in the period in which goods and 
services are received or a liability is incurred. 

Budgeting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The City submits requests 
for appropriations to the City Manager so that a budget may be prepared. The proposed budget is 
presented to the City Council for review. The Council holds public hearings and adopts a final budget. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City Manager may make 
transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between funds require the 
approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. 

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 5 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
City Council of the City of Suisun City

City of Suisun City, California 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the Statement of Revenues 
and Expenditures for Measure S of the City of Suisun City (the “City”) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statement, which comprises City’s 
statement of revenues and expenditures for Measure S, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 28, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statement, we 
considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 6 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including the applicable statutes, rules and 
regulations of Measure S and City Ordinance No. 742, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

December 28, 2018
San Jose, California

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 7 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MEASURE S

GENERAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY ORDINANCE NO. 742

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
City Council of the City of Suisun City

City of Suisun City, California

Report in Compliance

We have audited the City of Suisun City’s (the City) compliance of the Measure S revenues and 
expenditures with the types of compliance requirements described in Measure S General 
Transactions and Use Tax and Ordinance No. 742, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018. 

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations
applicable to Measure S.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance with Measure S based on 
our audit in accordance with the compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on Measure S revenues and expenditures occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on Measure S compliance. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Compliance with Measure S

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Measure S revenues and 
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6



Page | 8 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
Measure S revenues and expenditures to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Measure S General Transactions 
and Use Tax and Ordinance No. 742, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of City Council and management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

December 28, 2018
San Jose, California

scorey
Typewritten Text
Item #6


	1. 2019 03 20 - Oversight Committee agenda
	2. 2019 03 20 - Minutes of 2018 06 07
	3. Summary 742  Measure S Transactions and Use Tax Measure 2016 11 08 Election Text
	4. 2017-36   General Tax Oversight Committee Guidelines and Compensation 2017 05 30
	5. 2019 03 20 - FY2017-18 Measure S Audit_C&ALLP



